
 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Administrative. 

a. Minutes – October 11, 2017  

 

2. Old Business – None. 

 

3. New Business 

a. Public Hearing: Tradewinds/Southstreet Development Company, LLC, to request 

the rezoning of a 16+/- acre portion of the 31 acre property at the corner of US 

Route 202 and Coldbrook Drive.  The land is currently zoned Residential A zoning 

district and the request is to rezone the land to Commercial Services zoning district.  

The property is identified as Tax Map Parcel 33-0-011-A. 

 

b. Public Hearing: H.O. Bouchard, Inc., Amended Site Plan.  The applicant proposes to 

construct a 1,680 square foot addition and 300 square foot deck to an existing 

office building.  The project is located at 349 Coldbrook Road, and identified as 

Tax Map 14; Parcel 01-01.  The zoning district is Interchange Zone. 

 

c. Public Hearing: Hannaford Bros. Co., LLC, Amended Site Plan.  The applicant 

proposes a 320 square foot detached CLYNK Redemption Unit to be placed 

within an existing paved area of the Hannaford parking lot.  The project is located 

at 77 Western Ave., and identified as Tax Map 31; Parcel 02. 

 

d. Public Hearing: To review and make a recommendation on the proposed zoning 

ordinance amendments to prohibit recreational marijuana retail sales and social 

clubs in Hampden – referral from Town Council and Ordinance Committee 

 

e. Discussion Item: To discuss the current ordinance amendment process relative to the 

role of the Ordinance Committee and the ordinance amendment procedures 

detailed in Section 1.5 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

4. Staff Report 

 

5. Planning Board Comment 

 

6. Adjournment 

Town of Hampden 

Planning Board 

Wednesday, November 8, 2017, 7:00 pm 

Municipal Building Council Chambers 

Agenda 



 

 

 

 

 

In Attendance: 

 Planning Board Staff  
 Gene Weldon, Chair Angus Jennings, AICP, Town Manager 
 Peter Weatherbee Ben Smith, AICP, Contract Planner 
 Jim Davitt Public 
 Mort Syversen Michael Levesque, Applicant 
 Jim Davitt   
 Jennifer Austin   
 Kelley Wiltbank   
 

Chairman Welden called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.   

1. Administrative. 
a. Minutes of September 13, 2017 meeting: Motion by Member Davitt to approve 

as submitted; Second by Member Wiltbank, carried 6/0/1, Member Avery 
abstaining. 
 

2. Old Business. 
a. Introduction of contract planner, Ben Smith, AICP.  Discussion of approved scope of 

services, availability for Board support during interim engagement. 
 
Town Manager Angus Jennings introduced Ben Smith as the contract planning who 
would be assisting the Board with project review and staffing the next several 
Board meetings in the absence of Karen Cullen.  Day to day operations of the 
department would fall to Danielle Simons in the office and Ben would be in the 
office a couple days per month. 
 
Ben Smith introduced himself briefly and said he looked forward to assisting the 
Board. 
 

3. New Business 
a. Public Meeting: Michael Levesque proposes amendment (pursuant to the 

Subdivision Ordinance Sec. 342) to the approved Springer Estates Minor 
Subdivision to increase the area contained in Lot 3 by 1.6 acres.  Subdivision 
located off Western Avenue (Parcel 07-0-035B, Parcel 07-0-035C). 

Michael Levesque introduced the project to the Board.   

Town of Hampden 

Planning Board  

Wednesday October 11, 2017, 7:00 pm 

Municipal Building Council Chambers 

Minutes – Draft  

townmanager
Typewritten Text
1-a



  Planning Board 
  Minutes of 9/13/2017 Meeting 
  Page 2 of 3 
 
 

• The proposed change to the subdivision is to add 1.6 acres to Lot 3, which 
he currently owns, to bring the total acreage of that lot to 6.19 acres.   

• The land to be added is coming from a 96+/- acre property to be 
retained by the applicant.   

• The purpose of the application is to give the buyer of Lot 3 some 
additional land behind the existing house to serve as a buffer to any 
potential activities on the applicant’s remaining land. 

Planning Board Members asked questions: 

Member Scott asked for clarification on the configuration of future property 
access.  The plan shows an Existing Gravel Drive for the house on Lot 3 on Deer 
Lane as well as a Woods Road on Route 9 (Western Avenue) that is on the 
frontage for the Remaining Land, but traverses both Lots 1 and 3 before returning 
to the Remaining Land.  Mr. Levesque stated that the easements over Lots 1 and 3 
were to be extinguished and a new entrance would be constructed when necessary 
for the Remaining Land. 

Member Avery noted that there appeared to be only 210 feet of frontage on 
Route 9 for the entire Remaining Land.  The applicant agreed, noting that the only 
frontage for the Remaining Land was on Route 9. 

Member Avery noted that he had done some survey work for an abutting 
property owner, and that the past work would not impact his review or vote of this 
application.  There was no objection from the Board or the applicant. 

Member Avery asked if there had been a previous change to area of Lot 1.  Mr. 
Levesque confirmed that changes to the lot lines between Lot 1 and Lot 3 had 
occurred in the past. 

Member Syversen recalled that during the original application review there had 
been discussion about how the Remaining Land retained frontage relative to Route 
9 (Western Avenue) and Deer Hill Road.  Mr. Levesque reiterated that the only 
frontage for the Remaining Land was on Route 9. 

Motion by Member Weatherbee to Approve the minor amendment to Springer 
Estates showing the new lot lines; second by Member Avery; carried 7/0/0. 

4. Staff Report: Town Manager Jennings introduced Ben Smith, Contract Planner, who will be 
working with the Town over the next few months until Planner Cullen is back.  Mr. Smith 
gave a brief introduction of himself and background and expressed his pleasure for the 
opportunity to assist the Board. 
 
Town Manager Jennings reviewed the Planning Board Project List of projects that are 
upcoming for the next Board meeting and recently approved projects under construction. 
 



  Planning Board 
  Minutes of 9/13/2017 Meeting 
  Page 3 of 3 
 
 

Town Manager Jennings reminded the Board of training opportunities though Maine 
Municipal Association. 
 

5. Planning Board Comment.  Chariman Weldon asked Town Manager Jennings about the 
status of the Fiberight facility.  Manager Jennings said that the recently placed binder 
pavement had to be removed due to consistency issues with depth of pavement and is 
being replaced. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 pm by motion of Member Davitt, with second by member 
Syversen; motion carried 7/0/0. 

Respectfully submitted by Ben Smith, Contract Planner 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Planning Board 
From: Ben Smith, AICP, Contract Planner 
Date: October 23, 2017 
RE: Report on Application for Zoning District Amendment 
 

Project Information 
Applicant: Southstreet Development Company, LLC 

Site Location: Corner of Route 202 and Coldbrook Road, Tax Map/Parcel # 33-0-011-A 

Zoning District: Residential A (current zoning) 

Proposal: Change from Residential A to Commercial Services District 
 

 

Southstreet Development submitted an application for a zone change for the property on the 
corner of Route 202 and Coldbrook Road in July 2017.  The review of the request was put on 
hold per the applicant’s request.  Per an email from the applicant’s representative Randy Bragg, 
P.E., of Carpenter Associates, to Angus Jennings, Hampden Town Manger, dated October 16, 
2017, the zone change request has been reactivated. 

About 16 acres of the total site are proposed for Commercial Services District zoning.  As shown 
on page 6 of the application, the area to be rezoned is about 750 deep from the edge of the 
Route 202 right-of-way, and there remains a 200 foot buffer of Residential A between the homes 
on Stoneybrook Road. 

The zoning district amendment request is consistent with the Proposed Land Use Map included in 
the 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  The map shows this area as “Proposed Commercial District.” 

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

 

Report on Application 

Zoning District Amendment 

Tradewinds/Southstreet Development 
Company LLC 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-a



Tradewinds Site
Proposed Commercial

planner
Line

planner
Oval

planner
Highlight























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Planning Board 

From: Ben Smith, AICP, Contract Planner 

Date: October 25, 2017 

RE: Report on Application for H.O. Bouchard Site Amendment 

 

Project Information 

Applicant: H.O. Bouchard, Inc. 

Site Location: 349 Coldbrook Road, Tax Map Parcel 14-0-001-01 

Zoning District: Interchange 

Proposal: Addition of 1,380 square feet to existing office building, 300 square foot deck 
 

The H.O. Bouchard Site Plan was approved by the Planning Board on May 10, 2000. The 

original site plan approval is attached.  The site includes a truck terminal, truck parking, a truck 

fueling station and an office building for the business. 

Review of the application should focus on the proposed changes to the approved plan.  The 

applicant is requesting an amendment to the approved plan in order to add an addition to the 

office building which is roughly 44 feet by 30 feet, along with a deck shown to measure 12 feet 

by 25 feet.   

Much of the new addition is to be built on an existing parking area, and the overall result of the 

project will be a reduction in impervious area by about 3,170 square feet as a larger portion of 

unused pavement will be removed, then loamed and revegetated.  The project was subject to a 

DEP Site Location of Development permit. 

The addition is to accommodate workers that are already on site in a different location, so no 

new traffic is anticipated as a result of this addition.  No new site lighting is proposed and the 

amendment will not impact any tree lines or buffers between the site and abutting properties, so 

no impacts on neighboring properties are expected. 

This project was reviewed with Town staff.  All outstanding questions have been addressed with 

the plan submitted in the Board packet, which is dated October 16, 2017.  This version of the 

plan was produced to clarify existing features that exist on site today with proposed features 

that are subject to review within the proposed modification. 

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

 

Report on Application 

H.O. Bouchard Site Plan Amendment 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-b













































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approval Date: November 8, 2017 

Project Name:  H.O. Bouchard Amended Site Plan 

Location of Project: 349 Coldbrook Road 

Assessor’s Reference: Tax Map Parcel 14-0-001-01 

Zoning District:  Interchange Zoning District 

Total Acreage:  39.72 acres 

Type of Use:  Truck terminal 

Applicant:  H.O. Bouchard, Inc. 

   P.O. Box 249  

   Hampden, ME  04444 

Owner:   Same as Applicant 

Plans Prepared by: Plymouth Engineering, Inc., P.O. Box 46, Plymouth, ME  04696 

Plans Dated:  October 17, 2017 

Application Date: October 11, 2017 

Public Hearing: November 8, 2017 

PB Members: Peter Weatherbee, Michael Avery, Kelley Wiltbank, James Davitt, Morton 
Syversen, Eugene Weldon and Tom Dorrity 

PB Action: ___________. This Site Plan Amendment is [approved/approved with 
conditions/denied] under Section 4.1.5 of the Hampden Zoning Ordinance, 
Site Plan Review. 

       

 

 

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

 

Planning Board Order 

H.O. Bouchard, Inc. 

Amended Site Plan 



Planning Board Order – H.O. Bouchard Site Plan Amendment page 2 

Summary Description of Application:  

The land is currently developed as a truck terminal with associated offices, storage, 
fueling and parking areas.  This application is to add 1,380 square feet of office space 
to the existing office building, along with a 300 square foot deck. 

 

Findings: 

After the public hearing was duly noticed and held, the Hampden Planning Board found 
that the applicable requirements in Section 4.1.5 of the Hampden Zoning Ordinance, Site 
Plan Review, have been met.  Based on this, the Hampden Planning Board voted _______ 
to [approve/deny] the Site Plan Amendment to the H.O. Bouchard Site Plan. 

 

  



Planning Board Order – H.O. Bouchard Site Plan Amendment page 2 

For the Hampden Planning Board: 

 

____________________ 
Date 
 
 
____________________   ______________________ 
Eugene Weldon, Chairman   Michael Avery 
 
 
____________________   ______________________ 
Kelley Wiltbank    Peter Weatherbee 
 
 
____________________   ______________________ 
Morton Syversen    James Davitt 
 
 
____________________   ______________________ 
Tom Dorrity     
 



To: Planning Board 
From: Ben Smith, AICP, Contract Planner 
Date: October 8, 2017 
RE: Report on Application to Hannaford Supermarket Site Plan 

Project Information 
Applicant: Hannaford Bros. Co., LLC 

Site Location: 77 Western Avenue; Parcel 301-0-002 

Zoning District: Business B Zoning District 

Proposal: Modify an approved Site Plan to add a 384 square foot accessory building and 
remove 5 parking spaces 

The Graves Supermarket Site Plan was approved by the Planning Board on November 8, 2000.  
The current application is an amendment to that approval to add a 12 foot by 32 foot CLYNK 
unit to the northern corner of the existing parking area as shown on the Overall Site Plan, Sheet 1 
of 3, dated September 21, 2017.  The CLYNK unit is an accessory structure for the storage of 
returnable bottles and cans.  It has no foundation but will have an underground electrical service 
as shown on Sheet 2 of 3 in the plan set dated September 21, 2017. 

This application is before the Planning Board because the amendment results fewer onsite parking 
spaces than required by the Ordinance.  There are 152 existing spaces on the site, which is the 
minimum required for the existing 30,259 square foot building at 1 space per 200 square feet in 
Section 4.7.1.1 (30,259/200 = 151.3 = 152 spaces).  As noted in the letter from the applicant’s 
representative Darrin Stairs, P.E. at Stantec Consulting Services, dated September 19, 2017, the 
placement of the CLYNK unit results in the loss of 5 parking spaces.   

The applicant is requesting a waiver from the parking requirements to provide 147 spaces rather 
than the 152 required by ordinance.  Per Section 4.7.5, the Board may grant a waiver from this 
performance standard if the Board finds that granting a waiver will not: 

• Produce an unreasonably detrimental change in the character of the neighborhood, and
• Unreasonably detrimentally affect the use of surrounding properties

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

Report on Application 

Modification to 

Hannaford Supermarket Site Plan 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-c



2 

This project was reviewed with Town staff.  There are no outstanding staff concerns or questions 
based on the submission. 

This application was not sent for engineering peer review because the proposed amendment will 
not have an impact on stormwater issues as no new impervious area is proposed and there will be 
no impacts on traffic or internal traffic circulation. 



townmanager
Typewritten Text











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approval Date: November 8, 2017 

Project Name:  Hannaford Supermarket Amended Site Plan 

Location of Project: 77 Western Avenue 

Assessor’s Reference: Tax Map Parcel 302-0-002 

Zoning District:  Business B Zoning District 

Total Acreage:  3.89 acres 

Type of Use:  Retail and Service Business (supermarket grocery store) 

Applicant:  Hannaford Bros. Co., LLC 

   c/o JM Lord, Maple Rock, LLC 

   P.O. Box 28, 560 South Road 

   Rye Beach NH  03871 

Owner:   Hannaford Brothers Co. 

   P.O. Box 1000 

   Portland ME  04104 

Plans Prepared by: Stantec 

Plans Dated:  September 14, 2017 

Application Date: September 19, 2017 

Public Hearing: November 8, 2017 

PB Members: Peter Weatherbee, Michael Avery, Kelley Wiltbank, James Davitt, Morton 
Syversen, Eugene Weldon and Tom Dorrity 

PB Action: ___________. This Site Plan Amendment is [approved/approved with 
conditions/denied] under Section 4.1.5 of the Hampden Zoning Ordinance, 
Site Plan Review. 

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

 

Planning Board Order 

Hannaford Supermarket 

Amended Site Plan 



Planning Board Order – Hannaford Site Plan Amendment page 2 

       

Summary Description of Application:  

The original store was approved as a Graves Supermarket in 2000.  This application is to 
add a CLYNK 384 square foot accessory unit for storage of recyclable bottles and cans.  
Placement of this unit in the existing parking lot will result in the loss of five (5) parking 
spaces, bringing the total available spaces to 147. 

 

Findings: 

After the public hearing was duly noticed and held, the Hampden Planning Board found 
that the applicable requirements in Section 4.1.5 of the Hampden Zoning Ordinance, Site 
Plan Review, have been met.  Based on this, the Hampden Planning Board voted _______ 
to [approve/deny] the Site Plan Amendment to the Hannaford Site Plan. 

 

  



Planning Board Order – Hannaford Site Plan Amendment page 2 

For the Hampden Planning Board: 

 

____________________ 
Date 
 
 
____________________   ______________________ 
Eugene Weldon, Chairman   Michael Avery 
 
 
____________________   ______________________ 
Kelley Wiltbank    Peter Weatherbee 
 
 
____________________   ______________________ 
Morton Syversen    James Davitt 
 
 
____________________   ______________________ 
Tom Dorrity     
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Planning Board 
From: Angus Jennings, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: October 26, 2017 
RE: Proposed Retail (Recreational) Marijuana Amendments 
 

A meeting of the Planning Board’s Ordinance Committee was held on Tuesday, October 17 at 6 
PM. Planning Board members Michael Avery, Kelly Wiltbank, James Davitt and Gene Weldon 
were in attendance. In the absence of the Town Planner, the Town Manager Angus Jennings 
provided staff support to the meeting. One resident, Valerie Webster, attended as well.  

Mr. Davitt reported that he is hearing that it may be another year before the State finalizes its 
regulations regarding recreational marijuana. It was acknowledged that the resulting uncertainty 
will continue to delay the Town’s consideration of policy regarding certain potential uses – 
specifically, cultivation, testing, manufacture, and the new potential use category “nursery.” 

Manager Jennings reported that the State policy appears to be going in the direction of creating 
a presumptive prohibition of commercial uses related to recreational marijuana. This would 
require municipalities to specifically zone for the uses, rather than a presumptive allowance which 
would require municipalities that don't want some or all of the uses to specifically zone them out. 
(Until recently, Hampden and many other communities have been under the impression that there 
would be a presumptive allowance). This would have bearing on the proposed amendments to 
prohibit retail sales and social clubs. He recommended proceeding with the amendments. While 
they may end up being unnecessary, depending on final State policy, they would do no harm. 

There was discussion about the approach taken by the proposed amendments, which is to define 
certain uses related to retail marijuana sales and social clubs, then to not list those as allowed uses 
in any of the zoning districts. The Town Attorney has reviewed the proposed language and 
verified that this would have the effect of prohibiting these uses. Additional amendments to 
existing definitions are proposed in order to specify that certain uses – i.e. agriculture, retail – do 
not include allowance for recreational marijuana uses. Mr. Wiltbank asked whether the definitions 
are consistent with the recreational marijuana statute and Manager Jennings said they were. 

Manager Jennings said that, when the work now underway to create a Table of Use Regulations 
is complete, it will provide more clarity – for applicants, staff, and the Board – regarding what 
uses are allowed where, but until that work is complete the proposed approach is effective. 

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

 

Memorandum 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-d



Proposed Retail (Recreational) Marijuana Amendments  2 
 
 
 
Resident Valerie Webster expressed her interest in closely tracking the Town’s work on 
recreational marijuana policy. 

There was a motion by Mr. Wiltbank seconded by Mr. Weldon to refer the proposed zoning 
amendments to the Planning Board with an “ought to pass” recommendation. The motion passed 
4-0. The public hearing on the proposed amendments will take place at the Board’s next meeting 
on November 8. 

As an informational item, Manager Jennings reported that the proposed rezoning of the parcel at 
the northeast corner of Coldbrook Road and Route 202, which had been withdrawn by the 
petitioner this summer, had recently been reactivated. He said that his reading of the Zoning 
Ordinance is that staff would schedule a public hearing regarding the proposed map amendment 
because it was initiated by a private party, rather than a referral from Town Council. He said he 
intended to proceed in this manner for the proposed map amendment, and that the public hearing 
would be scheduled for the Board’s next meeting on November 8. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 PM. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Planning Board 
From: Angus Jennings, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: September 7, 2017 
RE: Retail (Recreational) Marijuana Amendments 
 

As directed by the Town Manager in accordance with the Resolution adopted on April 18, 2017 
by Town Council regarding the legalization of recreational marijuana, the Town Planner 
proposed the following amendments to Section 7.2, Definitions, of the Zoning Ordinance.  

The purpose of these amendments is to effectively prohibit retail sales of marijuana and social 
clubs for marijuana. Modifications to a number of existing definitions are proposed to be clear 
about how retail marijuana businesses should be interpreted – e.g. neither retail marijuana sales 
nor social clubs are to be considered as home businesses or customary home occupations.     

The proposed amendments have been reviewed by the Town Attorney, who found them in proper 
form and consistent with the policy intent. 

The Town Council’s Planning & Development Committee reviewed the proposed amendments at 
their August 16 meeting and favorably recommended them to the Town Council. At their August 
21 meeting, the Town Council referred the proposed amendments to the Planning Board for 
consideration and public hearing. 

These amendments are the first phase of the expected zoning amendments dealing with retail 
marijuana; the second phase will deal with regulating the other three use categories – cultivation, 
testing, and product manufacture. Those will not be drafted until late 2017 or early 2018, since 
we are waiting for more information from the state on how their rules will handle the industry and 
what municipalities will be able to do for local regulation.  

 

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

 

Memorandum 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Retail Marijuana Sales & Social Clubs DRAFT v3 
 

 

  Page 1 of 2 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

The Town of Hampden Hereby Ordains 

Proposed Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance 

Deletions are Strikethrough  Additions are Underlined 

 

Amend §7.2 Definitions 

Agriculture: The production, keeping or maintenance of plants and/or animals including but not limited to: 

forages and sod crops, grains and seed crops; dairy animals and dairy products; poultry products; 

livestock; fruits and vegetables; and other plants. Agricultural uses shall include wholesaling, retailing and 

processing of agricultural products which are customary and accessory to an agricultural use. Agriculture 

does not include forest management, commercial nurseries, and timber harvesting activities, or commercial 

cultivation of marijuana. (Amended: 12-18-95) 

Customary Rural Businesses: Shall be limited to the following uses: Retail Sales & Service; products 

produced on-site such as art work, pottery, quilts, needle work, baked goods and wooden furniture, 

antiques, farm & logging supply, feed and grain store, tack shop, grocery and convenience store, hunting 

& fishing supplies, taxidermy, sporting and camping equipment, Places of Assembly; diners and roadside 

cafes where no drive thru service is provided (not to exceed 30 seats), bed & breakfast inns (not to 

exceed 10 guest rooms). Retail marijuana stores, social clubs, cultivation, processing, or testing 

establishments shall not be categorized as Customary Rural Businesses. (Amended: 12-2-96) 

Drug store or Pharmacy: An establishment engaged in the retail sales of prescription drugs, non-

prescription medicines, medical equipment or supplies, with or without other consumer products for sale, but 

not including the sale of marijuana or products containing marijuana.   

Home occupation: The subordinate use of a dwelling unit or structure accessory to a dwelling unit for 

gainful employment involving the manufacture, provision or sale of goods and/or services. See Use of 

Residence for Business Purposes. 

Medical marijuana: Marijuana shall have the definition set forth in Title 17-A M.R.S.A. Section 1101(1) and 

the State of Maine Rules Governing the Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Program (10-144 CMR Chapter 

122, Section 1.15), as the same may be amended from time to time. (Amended 03-07-11)  The leaves, 

stems, flowers and seeds of all species of the plant genus cannabis, whether growing or not; but shall not 

include the resin extracted from any part of such plant and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, 

mixture or preparation from such resin including hashish and further, shall not include the mature stalks of 

such plant, fiber produced from such stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of such plant, any other 

compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture or preparation of such mature stalks, fiber, oil or cake or 

the sterilized seed of such plant which is incapable of germination. [17-A MRSA Section 1101.1 – medical 

marijuana laws] 

Retail marijuana: All parts of the plant of the genus Cannabis whether growing or not, the seeds thereof, 

the resin extracted from any part of the plant and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture 

or preparation of the plant, its seeds or its resin including cannabis concentrate. "Retail marijuana" does 

not include industrial hemp, fiber produced from the stalks, oil, cake made from the seeds of the plant, 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Retail Marijuana Sales & Social Clubs DRAFT v3 
 

 

  Page 2 of 2 

sterilized seed of the plant that is incapable of germination or any ingredient combined with cannabis to 

prepare topical or oral administrations, food, drink or any other product.  [17 MRSA Section 4224.5 – 

marijuana legalization act] 

Retail marijuana social club: An entity licensed to sell retail marijuana and retail marijuana products to 

consumers for consumption on the licensed premises. [17 MRSA Section 4224.39 – marijuana legalization 

act] 

Retail marijuana store: An entity licensed to purchase retail marijuana from a retail marijuana cultivation 

facility and to purchase retail marijuana products from a retail marijuana products manufacturing facility 

and to sell retail marijuana and retail marijuana products to consumers. [17 MRSA Section 4224.40 – 

marijuana legalization act] 

Retail sales: The sale or rental of merchandise to the general public. Retail sales shall be limited to 

merchandise typically kept in stock on the premises. Retail sales shall allow accessory service unless 

prohibited elsewhere in this Ordinance. Retail sales shall not include the sale of marijuana or any product 

for human consumption that includes marijuana or any derivative of marijuana.  

Service business: Any business or establishment which provides a service for hire by others, conducted 

through the application of some specialized knowledge, training, skill or talent, or through the employ of 

physical exertion or other effort in the performance of some special action or work. A service business shall 

include any establishment engaged in the fields of finance, insurance or real estate and any establishment 

providing professional, personal, or business services; a service business shall not include automobile 

service, outdoor recreation, manufacturing use, or a hotel or motel, or cultivation, harvesting, processing, 

testing or sales of marijuana, but may include rooming houses, boarding homes, tourist homes, and bed 

and breakfast establishments with six (6) or fewer rooms. 

Use of Residence for Business Purposes: The subordinate use of a dwelling unit or structure accessory to a 

dwelling unit for gainful employment involving the manufacture, provision or sale of goods and/or services, 

with the exception that neither retail marijuana sales nor marijuana social clubs shall be operated under 

these provisions. There are three categories of such use, which are defined in §4.10 of this ordinance: home 

business, customary home occupation, and home based contractor.  (Added 4-18-17) 



townmanager
Rectangle









 

 

  
 
TO:  Planning Board 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  November 1, 2017 

RE:  Ordinance amendment process (Zoning, Subdivision, Shoreland Zoning) 
 

 

Last fall, the Town Planner prepared a series of flow charts to illustrate the zoning 
amendment process in Hampden. The current process is more lengthy and process-
intensive than required by statute due to several local requirements that result from 
local Ordinance and the Town Charter, specifically: 
 

1. The Town Charter requires a Town Council public hearing, in addition to the 
statutorily required Planning Board public hearing, for adoption of amendments to 
the Zoning, Subdivision and Shoreland Zoning Ordinances. This hearing adds 
about a month to the process, and a cost of about $200 for the hearing notice, 
even for non-controversial ordinance amendments. 

2. The Town Charter provides that ordinance amendments do not take effect until 
30 days after their adoption.  

 
Until the Town Charter may be amended in the future, these delays cannot be avoided.  
 
As you know, this past spring the Town Council amended the Zoning Ordinance in order 
to clarify and simplify the procedural requirements related to zoning amendments. The 
revised Section 1, approved on May 1, is enclosed for your reference. 
 
The Council anticipates proposing a number of additional zoning amendments in the 
coming months, and beyond; the most recent list of prioritized zoning amendments 
within the Town Planner’s work plan is attached.  
 
In order to achieve the policy objectives of these amendments, including providing all 
project applicants prompt and predictable permitting, it will be necessary to finalize 
certain amendments well enough in advance of the 2018 construction season in order 
to improve the permitting process applicable to those projects. 
 
The Zoning Ordinance provides the Planning Board up to 90 days, from the date of 
Town Council referral, to make a recommendation regarding proposed amendments. 
(The timeline is different for amendments proposed by landowner or petition). However, 
it is the Town Council’s expectation that the Planning Board will expedite its 
consideration of proposed ordinance amendments to the maximum degree feasible 
without compromising the Board’s ability to do so with all due care. In many instances, 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-e



 

 

the Council, through its Planning & Development Committee, does not think that 90 
days would be needed. 
 
The Council’s Planning & Development Committee has become increasingly focused on 
how the ordinance amendment process may become more efficient. Specifically, the 
P&D Committee has discussed the Planning Board’s amendment review process, 
including the role of the Ordinance Committee (OC). 
 
In current practice, the Planning Board will not consider zoning amendments referred by 
the Town Council without convening a meeting of, and receiving a recommendation 
from, the OC. If amendments are reviewed in a single OC meeting, this adds about a 
month to the amendment process. If more than one meeting of the OC is needed, this 
would result in a further delay. The OC meetings also require staff support to prepare 
the meeting packet, attend the meeting, and document the OC’s recommendation.  
 
However, neither State law, local ordinance, the Town Charter nor the Planning Board 
Bylaws refer to the OC nor define its membership and responsibilities. 
 
The Councilors’ have expressed concerns about the role of the OC arising from the 
delays it adds to the Board’s review process, impact on limited staff time, as well as a 
process that is harder to follow and less transparent for members of the public. 
 
Consider, for example, a resident attending the publicly noticed November 8 hearing of 
the Planning Board regarding the proposed zoning map amendment. If the Board 
declines to make a recommendation that night, and instead refers to the matter to the 
OC (with the expectation that the OC would then offer a recommendation back to the 
Planning Board), that resident would need to attend three meetings in order to view the 
Board’s deliberation regarding the proposal. The Council feels that the public should 
reasonably expect a Board recommendation at the publicly noticed hearing. If more 
deliberation is needed, or if the Board requests research from staff that is not part of the 
original public hearing materials, the Board always has the option to continue a hearing 
to a future date/time certain without incurring further advertising costs. 
 
Further, because Advisory Committees are exempt from certain aspects of the Maine 
Freedom of Access law (1 M.R.S.A. 403(6)), there is no legal requirement to keep 
minutes of the OC meeting proceedings. (In practice, OC meetings have been posted, 
but minutes have not been kept – although the OC’s recommendations are typically 
documented in correspondence to the Planning Board and/or in the Board’s meeting 
minutes.) 
 
The P&D Committee recently voted unanimously (among the 5 Councilors present) to 
recommend the following changes to the Planning Board’s process in order to expedite 
its consideration of proposed ordinance amendments:  
 

1. End the practice of referring proposed amendments to the OC, at least until such 
time as the Planning Board Bylaws may be amended in order to define the 
Committee, its membership, and its responsibilities; 



 

 

2. Consider – as a Board – proposed ordinance amendments within its regularly 
scheduled public meetings, prior to referral to public hearing or simply consider 
the proposed amendments within the public hearing itself; and 

 
3. If Board deliberation within its regularly scheduled meetings would impair the 

Board members’ ability to consider amendments with all due care, hold posted 
meetings immediately preceding its regularly scheduled meetings (say, at 5:30 or 
6 PM prior to a 7 PM Planning Board meeting) for the purpose of deliberating 
ordinance amendments on that evening’s posted agenda. (It is worth noting that, 
based on review of some Planning Board meeting minutes from the early 2000s, 
it was typical at that time for the OC to meet immediately prior to the Planning 
Board meeting). 

 
The Council’s objectives with these changes would be to improve the timeliness and the 
public transparency of ordinance amendments. Given the nature of some of the 
anticipated zoning amendments, and their time sensitivity, we hope that the Planning 
Board will see fit to change its practices. 
 
Two members of the Council will join me in attending the November 8 Planning Board 
meeting in order to discuss these proposals. We appreciate your consideration. 
 



Town of Hampden, Maine
Zoning Ordinance

1 

Effective Date: September 6, 2017 

 
 

 

ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 
 

1.1	Title	and	Purpose	
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Hampden, Maine" 
and will be referred to herein as this "Ordinance". It is enacted by the inhabitants by dividing the Town into 
zones and regulating the use and construction of buildings and premises with a view to encourage the most 
appropriate use of land in the Town of Hampden, Maine. 
 

1.2.	Basic	Requirement	
All buildings or structures hereinafter erected, reconstructed, altered, enlarged, or moved, and all uses of 
premises in the Town of Hampden shall be in conformity with the provisions of this Ordinance. No building, 
structure, land or water area shall be used for any purpose or in any manner except as permitted within the 
district in which such building, structure, land, or water area is located. 
 

1.3.	Severability	
Should any section of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be invalid, such decision shall not invalidate 
any other section or provision of this Ordinance. 
 

1.4.		Conflict	with	other	Ordinances	
This Ordinance shall in no way impair or remove the necessity of compliance with any other rule, regulation, 
by-law, permit or provision of law.  Where this Ordinance imposes a greater restriction upon the use of 
the land,   buildings, or structures, the provisions of this ordinance shall prevail. (Amended 5-1-2017) 
 

1.5.	 Amendment	(Amended 5-1-2017)	
1.5.1. Initiation of Amendment - An amendment to this Ordinance may be initiated by: 

 
1.   The planning board, provided a majority of the board has so voted; 
 
2.   Request of the town council to the planning board; 
 
3.   Written petition of one hundred (100) registered voters of the town; or 
 
4.   Written application from the property owner seeking a change of the zoning classification for 

the owner's property, or any portion thereof (i.e. a map amendment). Any person or entity with 
a legally binding interest in or to said property may make such an application, provided such 
person or entity submits satisfactory evidence of such interest and written documentation from 
the property owner authorizing such person or entity to make application for the change of 
zoning classification. 

 
1.5.2. Text Amendments - Any proposed amendment to the text of this Ordinance that has not been 
initiated by the planning board shall be referred to the planning board for its review and 
recommendation. (Amended 5-1-2017) 



Town of Hampden, Maine
Zoning Ordinance

2 

Effective Date: September 6, 2017 

 
 

 

 
1.5.3   Zoning District Amendments (Map Amendments) 

 
1. Owner Initiated: The owner of a property seeking a change in the zoning classification of 

his/her property (see Article 1.5.1.4) shall file a zoning map amendment application, together 
with payment in accordance with the Town of Hampden Fees Ordinance, with the planning 
office. (Amended: 11-17-03, 5-1-2017) 

 
2. Petition Initiated: The person or entity who initiated a petition to amend the zoning 

classification of any property or group of properties shall be responsible for filing a zoning 
map amendment application, together with payment in accordance with the Town of 
Hampden Fees Ordinance, with the planning office. (Added 5-1-2017) 

 
3. Town Initiated: When a map amendment is initiated by the planning board, the board shall 

forward a memorandum fully describing the proposed amendment to the town council for 
information purposes only, prior to holding the public hearing. When a map amendment is 
initiated by the town council, the council shall refer the proposed amendment to the planning 
board for a public hearing as required by statute. (Added 5-1-2017) 

 
1.5.4 Process: 

 
1. Public Hearing: Upon receipt of an application, memorandum, or referral, the planning office 

shall schedule a public hearing to be conducted by the Planning Board on the proposed 
amendment within sixty (60) days of receipt. (Amended 5-1-2017) 

2. Notice Requirements: Prior to said public hearing, and in accordance with the requirements 
of this Ordinance and the laws of the State of Maine, notice of said hearing shall be given. The 
notice shall include, but not be limited to, the date, time and place of the hearing, a short 
description and, for proposed map amendments, a map showing the boundaries of the current 
and proposed zoning districts, and the location where the proposed amendment can be 
viewed.  (Amended 5-1-2017) 

a. Publishing Requirements: Said notice shall be published twice in a daily newspaper of 
general circulation in the Town of Hampden, the first at least twelve (12) days and the 
second at least seven (7) days in advance of said hearing. 

b. Posting Requirements: Said notice shall be posted in the Town Offices at least thirteen 
(13) days prior to the hearing.   

c. Abutter Notification Requirements: For proposed map amendments, said notice shall be 
sent by U.S. Mail to all persons initiating the proposed map amendment, to all persons 
owning property within the boundaries of the proposed map amendment, and to all 
persons owning property within three hundred (300') feet of the exterior boundaries of 
the area affected by the proposed change. For purposes of the notices required under this 
section, the owners of property shall be considered to be those against whom taxes were 
assessed on the prior April 1.  Failure of any person owning property within said three 
hundred (300') feet to receive notices provided herein shall not necessitate another 
hearing or invalidate any action by the planning board or the town council. 

3. Planning Board Recommendation: The planning board shall make a recommendation of 
approval or denial for any proposed amendment, and may make a recommendation of 
approval with modifications for any proposed amendment. To constitute planning board 
approval the amendment and any proposed modifications thereto must receive at least four (4) 
affirmative votes from the board. In all cases, the planning board shall forward their 
recommendation to the town council; this shall be done within 14 days of the completion of the 



Town of Hampden, Maine
Zoning Ordinance

3 

Effective Date: September 6, 2017 

 
 

 

public hearing and, when the proposed amendment was referred to the planning board from 
town council, within ninety (90) days of  the date of said referral.  Failure of the board to make 
a recommendation within the allotted time shall constitute a recommendation of denial for the 
purposes of this Ordinance. (Amended 5-1-2017) 

 
1.5.5. Adoption of Amendment 

 
1.  Text amendments not involving the zoning classification of property may be adopted by a 

majority vote of the town council members present and voting, if the amendment is recommended 
by the planning board, or by a two-thirds majority vote of the town council members present and 
voting, if the amendment is not recommended by the planning board. (Amended 5-1-2017) 

 
2. Map amendments may be adopted by a vote of five (5) town council members present and voting, 

if the amendment is recommended by the Planning Board, or by a vote of six (6) town council 
members present and voting, if the amendment is not recommended by the planning board. 
(Amended 5-1-2017) 

 
3. Amendments adopted by the town council shall become effective thirty (30) days after the date 

of adoption. (Amended: 5-5-86, 3-2-87, 4-6-87, 2-4-91, 5-1-2017) 
 
4. The Department of Environmental Protection shall be notified by the municipal clerk of zone 

changes (map amendments) in areas impacted by the  Shoreland Zoning Ordinance within 
thirty (30) days of the effective date of such amendments. (Amended 5-1-2017) 

 

   



 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
From: Karen M. Cullen, AICP, Town Planner 
Date: August 15, 2017 
RE: Update on Amendments to Zoning and Shoreland Zoning Ordinances 

 

This table provides a status update on zoning amendments since January 2017. Colored rows are 
amendments that were added since January 2017. 

Topic Ord, Section(s) Status/Comments 
Accessory apartments ZO, New §4.25 Adopted; effective June 14, 2017 
Home occupations ZO, 4.10 Adopted; effective May 18, 2017 
Flexibility in parking, buffer, 
and signage standards 

ZO, 4.7, 4.8 Adopted; effective May 31, 2017 

Shoreland Zoning SZO CEO working on wholesale revision by starting with 
State “model” and revising to fit Hampden; first 
draft under review by staff 

Use table ZO, New section  Undergoing edits 
Dimensional table ZO, New section Drafted, undergoing edits 
Article 3, Districts ZO To be drafted (reformat with use and dimensional 

table; rework “special district regulations”) 
Retail marijuana phase 1 
(prohibit sales & clubs) 

ZO, Unknown Drafted; on P&D agenda for Aug 16.  

Retail marijuana phase 2 
(regulate cultivation, testing, 
and product manufacture) 

ZO, Unknown To be drafted; working with Chief Rogers. 
Regulations anticipated late 2017 or early 2018 to 
ensure consistency with to-be-drafted State 
Regulations. Note, next status update to be 
provided to Manager in Oct. 

Medical marijuana ZO, 4.24 Edits to be drafted to make consistent with state 
law (distance to schools, etc.) 

Town center ZO, Various To be drafted after policy direction set; some 
amendments being done above will advance town 
center redevelopment. Public meetings/workshops 
to begin this summer/fall. 

Filling, Grading, & 
Stockpiling and Gravel 
extraction 

ZO 4.9, 4.23 Policy intent: repeal 2007 amendments (retain 
amendments needed for consistency with statute) 

Housekeeping edits ZO, Various Numerous relatively minor amendments throughout 
the Zoning Ordinance to address inconsistencies and 
things that make no sense; e.g. Conditional Lot 
Dimensions (flag lots). 

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

 

Memorandum 



Memo: Zoning Amendment Status Update  August 15, 2017 
  Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Article 1; process to amend 
the ZO 

ZO, article 1 Adopted; effective May 31, 2017 

Permits; specifically 
certificates of compliance 
and occupancy 

ZO, 5.3, 7.2 Adopted; effective Sept. 6, 2017 

Definitions; processing, 
transfer stations 

ZO, 7.2 Adopted; effective Sept. 6, 2017 

Official Zoning Map ZO, 2.2 Referred to PB; to be scheduled (expect Sept.) 
Recodification  All Decision to not pursue at this time.  

 


	Hannaford Site Plan 9-25-17.pdf
	Hannaford Site Plan 09-25-2017 (2)
	Image_20170925_0001
	Image_20170925_0002
	Image_20170925_0003




